GARDNER-SO. WILMINGTON HIGH SCHOOL GARDNER, IL 60424

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF AUGUST 21, 2024 REGULAR MEETING

CALL TO ORDER: The regular meeting of the Gardner-So. Wilmington High School Board of Education, Counties of Grundy and Kankakee, IL was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by President, Mrs. Katy Wepprecht.

ROLL CALL: Members present: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. Also in attendance were Superintendent Mrs. Sue Avery and Principal Mr. Brian Davis. Mr. Havey attended via cell-phone conference. All other members were present "in person."

PUBLIC COMMENT: None.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: Ms. Wright motioned and seconded by Mrs. Ashley to approve the meeting minutes for the month of *June*: (June 19, 2024 Budget Amendment Hearing minutes, Regular Meeting minutes & Closed Session minutes), bills for the month of *July & August* and payroll for the month of *July* and Financial Reports for the month of *July*. AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

INFORMATIONAL AND DISCUSSION ITEMS:

Principal's Report: Mr. Brian Davis, Principal, reported the following:

- August 12th Teacher Institute Day This year's mottos is "Raising the Bar". Admin and teachers discussed implementing new ideas and procedures, PLC, Vertical Alignment to state standards, and reviewed the Crisis Manual and Safety Protocols. Freshmen Orientation was also held from 5:30 to 7pm.
- August 13th Teacher Institute Day The admin met with teacher mentors, reviewed evaluation procedures, and discussed the RTI transition. Erica Schramm, Program Coordinator with Grundy County Special Education Coop, will be new to our building this year.
- August 14 The First Day of student attendance with a full school day. Our day started out with a back-to-school assembly in the gym, followed by school photos, bus drills and reviewing the handbook. For the remainder of the day, we ran a 10:00 AM to 3:00 PM bell schedule for classes.
- Plan Book = we have ten teachers using this pilot program this year. The plan book aligns classes, shows what they are teaching each day, and includes lesson plans.
- Pro Boards Teachers love them in the classroom, and we have received positive feedback.
- New Weight Room = Athletic Boosters donated \$8,000 for new equipment for the Lifetime Fitness class. We currently have bids out to finish this room. It needs new a floor, paint, the heating system removed and replaced, sink/drain fixed.
- Senior Step-It-Up Committee A group of five seniors met with Admin to discuss changing our current program. They had new ideas to implement and are working on revising it for this school year.

- Teacher of the Month Best Practices Mrs. Nicole Leigh for the month of August.
 Starting this school year, she implemented two Dual-Credit JJC Math Classes for GSW HS.
- MAP Testing 9th & 10th grades week of August 19 and 11th grade week of August 26.
- GSW Athletic Handbook has been completed
- PLW Grant \$16,000 received for engineering classes. We plan to add two classes next year.
- Green & White Night at Dwight High School Friday, Aug. 23rd
- GSW Athletic Boosters Annual Golf Outing Saturday, Aug. 31st
- Labor Day NO SCHOOL Monday, Sept. 2nd
- Panther Palooza Saturday, Sept. 7th at the Gardner American Legion
- SIP DAY Wed., Sept. 11 with an 11:30 AM early dismissal for students
- PLC Day Wed., Sept 18 with a 2:00 PM early dismissal for students

Director's Report: None at tonight's meeting.

Building and Grounds Report: Mrs. Sue Avery, Supt., reviewed the following:

- Leak in Boiler Pipes = We have had a few leaks and need to purchase claw fittings to install on the pipes to fix the issues.
- Parking lot seal-coated = Our lot looks great with the re-seal and new paint. We are currently waiting on a permit to dig out and repair the area that holds standing water.
- Gym Update = GSW is looking at piecing projects together using working cash bond money and adding both heating and cooling to the gym area. We can do these projects in stages. We can start with the ceiling area next summer. We can open up the gym ceiling, creating a dome ceiling in our gym, and then our hallway / entryway area will be opened up and have a higher ceiling.
- Weight Room Update = We pushed to get the shop area cleaned out at the end of summer and turned it into our new weight room area / Lifetime Fitness class. This is a new PE class for students, and we need to make this area great, so kids want to be in this class. Kids are really excited and want to use this new area for sports programs, after-school weight lifting, etc. We are looking at getting supervision after school / after hours, so students can utilize our new weight equipment. It has yet to be 100% ready for use. We are also looking at a new heating and cooling system for this area.
- ROE Maintenance Grant Items:
 - o Com Ed Project ComEd Grant funded project, new lighting in our classrooms and hallways over the summer
 - o Weight Room new heating and cooling system
 - o Parking Lot Fixes Repair area with standing water
 - o HVAC install new heating and cooling system in our gym in stages

Superintendent's Report: Mrs. Sue Avery discussed the following:

- FY2025 Tentative Budget Presentation Mrs. Avery reviewed the budget with board members. We are no longer receiving ESSR III funds this was COVID money and it is gone. Our budget still looks good for not having these grant funds. Our Budget Hearing will be next month, before our Regular meeting on September 18th, with final numbers.
- Threat Assessment Protocols Annually We approve this every with the Regional Office of Education. There is a process in place. It is reviewed and approved.
- Update E-Learning Plan Our 3-year plan has expired. By law, we have to hold a Public Hearing to announce a new 3-Year Plan for GSW HS. This Public Hearing will be held next month, before our Regular meeting on September 18th to review and approve our new 3-year plan.

- Transportation Our bus company, Illinois Central School Bus, and its drivers are currently under contract negotiations. At this time, we are still receiving transportation for our students. They will let us know if drivers strike. Area superintendents (GSW, GGS, BES, SWGS and CC) have been working together to discuss student transportation options and plans if there is a strike.
- Panther Bus = The bus has been repaired, and the air-conditioning is fixed and working. The bus has passed safety lane inspection and is ready for the school year.
- Parchment = New online transcript program. GSW is using this program for all past and current students to have their transcripts sent to colleges and job sites and for graduation verification. The new program was set in place on April 16, 2024. We have had 48 transcripts sent and four graduation verifications.
- Accounting On Sept. 5th Mrs. Avery will meet with our accountant and our auditors to review bank records and finances to present at the September Board Meeting.

BOE Members Reports: None at tonight's meeting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Upon the recommendation of the President, Mrs. Katy Wepprecht, Mrs. Schultz motioned and seconded by Mrs. Speed to go into closed session at 7:40 p.m. for the purpose of considering information regarding employment contracts or any matter permissible under the open meetings act.

2:220-E2

• The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the District or legal counsel for the District, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee or against legal counsel for the District to determine its validity. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1).

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

ADJOURN CLOSED AND RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: Mr. Harvey motioned and seconded by Mrs. Ashley to adjourn executive session and return to regular session at 8:28 p.m. AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

ACTION ITEMS:

APPROVE THE RESIGNTION OF KITCHEN MANAGER: Ms. Wright motioned and seconded by Mrs. Ashley to approve the Resignation of Kitchen Manager, Pat Trofimchuck. AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

AFFIRM THE HIRE OF KITCHEN MANAGER: Mr. Simms motioned and seconded by Ms. Wright to affirm the hire of Kitchen Manager, Paige Przybylski.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

AFFIRM THE HIRE OF P/T NIGHT CUSTODIAN: Mrs. Speed motioned and seconded by Mr. Harvey to affirm the hire of P/T Night Custodian, April Titus. AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE TRANSFER OF ASSISTANT BASEBALL COACH TO SUPPLEMENTAL BASEBALL COACH: Ms. Wright motioned and seconded by Mrs. Speed to approve the transfer of Assistant Baseball Coach to Supplemental Baseball Coach, Chris Halpin. AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE HIRE OF AN ASSISTANT BASEBALL COACH: Mrs. Ashley motioned and seconded by Mrs. Schultz to approve the hire of an Assistant Baseball Coach, Justin Wharrie. AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE HIRE OF SUPPLEMENTAL BOYS BASKETBALL COACH: Mr. Simms motioned and seconded by Ms. Wright to approve the hire of Supplemental Boys Basketball Coach, Justin Wharrie.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE THREAT ASSESSMENT PLAN AND PROTOCOLS FOR FY25: Ms. Wright motioned and seconded by Mrs. Schultz to approve the Threat Assessment Plan and Protocols for FY25, reviewed annually.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE FY2025 BUDGET – SEPTEMBER 18, 2024 AT 7:00 PM: Mr. Simms motioned and seconded by Mrs. Ashley to approve the Public Hearing for the FY2025 Budget – September 18, 2024 at 7:00 pm.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE FIRST READING OF PRESS POLICY 116: Mrs. Schultz motioned and seconded by Ms. Wright to approve the First Reading of Press Policy 116 – as presented by IASA.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE NEW GSW SPORTS HANDBOOK: Mrs. Schultz motioned and seconded by Mrs. Ashley to approve the new GSW Sports Handbook, as presented.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE ASSIGNMENT OF TEACHER MENTORS: Ms. Wright motioned and seconded by Mrs. Schultz to approve the assignment of Teacher Mentors – Rebecca Ridgway, Allan Wills and Patricia Boaz.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE THE ASSIGNMENT OF CLASS SPONSOR: Mr. Simms motioned and seconded by Mrs. Schultz to approve the assignment of Class Sponsor – Class of 2026 – Patricia Boaz. AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright. MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

APPROVE TO APPLY FOR THE SCHOOL MAINTENANCE PROJECT GRANT: Ms.

Wright motioned and seconded by Mrs. Ashley to approve to apply for the School Maintenance Project Grant.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright.

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

OTHER(s): None at tonight's meeting.

ADJOURNMENT: Mrs. Schultz motioned and seconded by Ms. Wright to adjourn the meeting at 8:37 PM.

AYES: Ashley, Harvey, Schultz, Simms, Speed, Wepprecht and Wright.

MOTION CARRIED: 7-0.

PRESIDENT, KATY WEPPRECHT	SECRETARY, CARLA HUSTON